
 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers, 160 South 3rd East 
Mountain Home, Idaho 

Tuesday, January 27, 2026 at 5:00 PM 

Join the Meeting live through Microsoft Teams Town Hall 
Link provided on the City Website: https://mountain-home.us/city-government/city-council/ 

All materials presented at public meetings become the property of the City of Mountain Home. Anyone 
desiring accommodation for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-587-2104 by at least 9:00 

AM the morning of the public meeting. 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM) 

____ Councilman Harjo   ____ Councilwoman Wirkkala   
____ Councilman McCarthy  ____ Councilman Sanders  ____ Mayor Sykes  

PRESENTATIONS  
 1) Officer of the Year recognition and presentation by Chief Larsen  

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE 
 (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an 

opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council on matters that are not listed on the 
current agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction and municipal purview of the City. 
Comments may not involve personnel matters, legal disputes, or the private non-municipal affairs of the 
constituency. Comments regarding Zoning or Land Use issues may only be made during properly noticed 
public hearings. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
 Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had, any contact with any 

person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 

CONSENT AGENDA  
 1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Planning & Zoning Commission- December 16, 2025 
 2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Council Minutes - January 13, 2026 
 3) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Council Minutes - January 15, 2026 
 4) Approve expenditures from 1/14/2026 to 1/27/2026 in the amount of $359,361.54 
 5) Treasurer's report for the period ending 12/31/2025. 
 6) Approve the appointment of Amber Henninger to the Library Board with a term that will expire 

in February 2030. 
 7) Pass resolution #03-2026R – Approving the Reappointment of Alan Bermensolo as a member 

of the Urban Renewal board for an additional 4-year term expiring on January 31, 2029, and 
authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Page 1 of 81

https://mountain-home.us/city-government/city-council/


NEW BUSINESS 
 1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda  
 2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission's recommendations 

and Finding of Facts for annexation with conditions. 
 3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission's recommendations 

and Finding of Facts for preliminary plat "Aslin Ranch Subdivision" with conditions. 
 4) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission's recommendations 

and Finding of Facts for annexation with conditions. 
 5) Workshop/discussion regarding the progression of the Railroad Park Project. (Councilman 

McCarthy)  

ORDINANCE 
 1) Ordinance 1814- Amending  City Code 8-1B-1-E Sidewalk, Curbs and Gutters, 8-4-5 

Excavation Fee, and 8-4-6 Bonding Fees. 

FINAL COMMENTS 

ADJOURN 

STAFF MEMO 
 1) Staff report from the Wastewater Department. 
 2) Staff Report from Fiber Optics Department. 
  

 
 

Page 2 of 81



Page 3 of 81



Page 4 of 81



Page 5 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON JANUARY 13TH, 2026, AT 5:00 P.M. 
AT MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 
 
#####  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
#####  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1) Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(f) –to communicate with legal counsel for the public agency to 
discuss the legal ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being 
litigated but imminently likely to be litigated. 

 
#####  PRESENTATION 

1) Award presentation by Mayor Sykes  
 
#####  RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE 
 
#####  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
  Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with any person 

regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 
 
##### CONSENT AGENDA  

  All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action, but are typically routine or 
not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of clarification may be 
asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy discussion or separate motion 
a Council member or citizen may request an item be removed from the Consent Agenda section and placed on 
the Regular Agenda.  
ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

   
1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Planning & Zoning Commission – November 18, 2025 
2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Council Minutes – December 9, 2025 
3) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Council Minutes – December 16, 2025 

(Pulled and moved to Old Business) 
4) Approve expenditures from 12/10/2025 to 1/13/2026 in the amount of $1,357,347.12 
5) Approve payroll for the period of 11/22/2025 to 12/21/2025 in the amount of $855,343.42 
6) Treasurer’s Report for the period ending 11/30/2025 
7) Accept the canvassed election results from the November 4, 2025, City Election 
8) Pass Resolution #01-2026R allowing the destruction of city records and authorizing the Mayor and City 

Clerk to sign. 
9) Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all required documents for the grant application 2025/2026-

007. 
10) Pass Resolution #02-2026R committing matching funds for the installation of a High Intensity Activated 

Crosswalk (HAWK) and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 
11) Set a Public Hearing for February 10, 2026, on the increase in Non-City resident Library Card fees. 
12) Approve Amendment 1 to the construction and development reimbursement agreement with the 

Mountain Home Urban Renewal Agency for the Railroad Park Plaza project, and authorize the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign. 
(Pulled and moved to Old Business) 

13) Approve Agreement for 2026 Pavement Rehabilitation (A.I.P. 3-16-0025-027-2026) at Mountain Home 
Airport and authorize the Mayor to sign all documents. 

14) Approve the lease agreement with Quadient fka Neopost for a new postage meter and folding machine 
for City Hall, and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

15) Approve Finding of Facts to zone C-3 PUD entitled “Albatross Greens” with conditions. 
16) Approve Finding of Facts preliminary plat “Albatross Greens” with conditions. 
17) Approve Finding of Facts for a conditional use permit to operate a drive-up window located at 1410 

American Legion Boulevard with conditions. 
 
#####  OLD BUSINESS 

1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda 
2) Approve the agreement with Azuga and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
3) Discussion regarding Councilman Brennan's motion pertaining to Action Item #4 of the Special meeting on 

December 16,2025 
 
#####  ORDINANCE 

1) Ordinance 1813 – to Zone C-3 Albatross Greens 
 
#####  PRESENTATIONS 

1) Presentation Mayor Sykes 
 
#####  COUNCIL COMMENTS 

1) Councilwoman Garvey’s departing comments 
2) Councilman Brennan’s departing comments 
3) City Council member comments 

 
#####  ADJOURN SINE DIE 

Page 6 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

 
#####  OATH OF OFFICE TO ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 
#####  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
#####  REMARKS 

1) Mayor Sykes 
2) Councilman McCarthy 
3) Councilman Sanders 

 
#####  NEW BUSINESS 

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to elect a new City Council President. 
2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations and Finding of 

Facts for annexation with conditions. 
3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to amend City Code 8-1B-1-E Sidewalk, Curbs, and Gutters, 8-4-5 

Excavation Fee, and 8-4-6 Bonding Fees.  
4) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to set a Public Hearing for February 10, 2026, on the increase in Street 

Fees. 
5) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to allow City Staff to draft a formal agreement with Marathon Cheese to 

use the parking lot at Optimist Park during the facility expansion project. 
 
#####  FINAL COMMENTS 
 
#####  ADJOURN 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON JANUARY 13TH, 2026 AT 5:00 P.M. 
 
 The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at the Mountain Home City Hall 
Chambers, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho, on January 13, 2026. A quorum was established with 
Councilwoman Garvey, Councilwoman Wirkkala, Councilman Brennan, Councilman Harjo, and Mayor Sykes being 
present.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 1) Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(f) – To communicate with legal counsel for the public agency 
to discuss the legal ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated 
but imminently likely to be litigated. 
 
 Councilman Brennan made a motion to enter into Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206(1)(f). 
Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman 
Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
 The Council went into Executive Session at 5:02 p.m. 
 
 The Council came out of Executive Session at 5:13 p.m. 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
 1) Award presentation by Mayor Sykes. 
 
 Mayor Sykes called Kim Anderson to come forward and thanked her for allowing Marty Anderson to do 
what he did and that it didn’t go unnoticed and that she was appreciated. He also thanked Colonel Gunther and 
Chief Rhodie for coming down on behalf of the 366th Gunfighters and thanked Shawn Brazel, President of the 
Chamber, for making time to attend the meeting. 
 
 Mayor Sykes then gave a speech about Marty Anderson and his service with both the US Airforce and as 
the Military Liaison. He called Marty Anderson forward and presented him with the 2025 Defense Community 
Champion award. 
 
 Marty Anderson thanked the Mayor and the team and gave a short acceptance speech. 
 
RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE  
 
 Bud Adams thanked the Council for their common sense and keeping the budget hopefully in line. 
    

Decker Sanders came forward to speak regarding Item 12 on the Consent Agenda. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with any person 
regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact.  

 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she spoke with Decker Sanders regarding Item 4 on the Consent Agenda 
and that there was no conflict of interest. 
 

Page 8 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

 Councilwoman Garvey received an email regarding the Railroad Park project. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action, but are typically routine 
or not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of clarification may be 
asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy discussion or separate motion a 
Councilmember or citizen may request an item be removed from the Consent Agenda section and placed on the 
Regular Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 
 

1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Planning & Zoning Commission – November 18, 2025 
2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Council Minutes – December 9, 2025 
3) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Council Minutes – December 16, 2025 
4) Approve expenditures from 12/10/2025 to 1/13/2026 in the amount of $1,357,347.12 
5) Approve payroll for the period of 11/22/2025 to 12/21/2025 in the amount of $855,343.42 
6) Treasurer’s Report for the period ending 11/30/2025 
7) Accept the canvassed election results from the November 4, 2025, City Election 
8) Pass Resolution #01-2026R allowing the destruction of city records and authorizing the Mayor and City 

Clerk to sign. 
9) Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all required documents for the grant application 2025/2026-

007. 
10) Pass Resolution #02-2026R committing matching funds for the installation of a High Intensity Activated 

Crosswalk (HAWK) and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 
11) Set a Public Hearing for February 10, 2026, on the increase in Non-City resident Library Card fees. 
12) Approve Amendment 1 to the construction and development reimbursement agreement with the 

Mountain Home Urban Renewal Agency for the Railroad Park Plaza project, and authorize the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign. 

13) Approve Agreement for 2026 Pavement Rehabilitation (A.I.P. 3-16-0025-027-2026) at Mountain Home 
Airport and authorize the Mayor to sign all documents. 

14) Approve the lease agreement with Quadient fka Neopost for a new postage meter and folding machine 
for City Hall, and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

15) Approve Finding of Facts to zone C-3 PUD entitled “Albatross Greens” with conditions. 
16) Approve Finding of Facts preliminary plat “Albatross Greens” with conditions. 
17) Approve Finding of Facts for a conditional use permit to operate a drive-up window located at 1410 

American Legion Boulevard with conditions.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala asked for clarification from Councilman Brennan on Item 3, Special City Council 
Meeting Minutes, where something about in-kind work was mentioned. She noticed it when she went back and 
watched the video after the meeting. 
 
 Mayor Sykes asked if it was that he said he was okay with the in-kind work. 
 
 Councilman Brennan confirmed that he was okay with the in-kind work.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala stated that the motion was passed that there would not be reallocation of funds 
from Parks, Streets, Water, Wastewater, or any other department at this time. She stated that in-kind work 
technically fell under that use of funds. 
 
 Paul Fitzer, City Attorney, stated that enterprise funds could not be used for that and for that reason, in-kind 
work does not have that prohibition.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that did not sit well with her and she did not want to approve the Consent 
Agenda with the Special Meeting Minutes. 
 
 Councilwoman Garvey asked if a quick recess could be taken in order to review the meeting as that was 
not what she recalled.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she did not want to take a recess that she wanted to watch the video on 
the record. 
 
 Mayor Sykes asked Tiffany Belt, City Clerk, to get the video pulled up. He also asked while they were 
waiting, if there was anything else on the Consent Agenda to discuss. 
 
 Councilwoman Garvey said that she had the same questions about Item 12 that Decker Sanders had 
during his public comment. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said again that she did not want to vote on the Consent Agenda because of Item 3, 
and suggested that Items 3 and 12 get pulled to keep the meeting going. 
 
 Councilman Harjo said that he wanted to give thanks to City staff and Public Works on Items 9 and 10 and 
that this would be a wonderful step in the right direction. 

Page 9 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

 
 Councilman Brennan said that for the record, they had received an update today for Item 17 and wanted to 
remind the Council to vote on the updated item that was given to them. 
 
 Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, pulling Items 3 and 12. Councilman 
Harjo seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, 
Councilman Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 1) Items removed from the consent agenda. 
 
 3) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Council Minutes – December 16, 2025. 
 
 Tiffany Belt pulled up the video of the Special Meeting that took place on December 16, 2025 for review for 
by the Council. She then explained what was said was “at this time” not “in-kind”.  
 
 Councilman Brennan said that the motion was crystal clear, any side chatter was not part of the motion. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala asked about the words “not necessary at this time” and asked what that meant. 
 
 Councilwoman Garvey said in her opinion, they had a document in front of them that showed how much 
was going to come out of each set of the budgets, for example $100,000 from Streets or Parks, and at the time of 
the motion that was possibility was removed. She continued to say that it could come back in the future for another 
vote if deemed necessary.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala expressed her frustration at not seeing the numbers in the packet until that 
moment in the meeting as it was scheduled during her working hours. 
 
 Councilman Harjo stated that all members of the Council had received the same information at the same 
time and the agenda item was used as a placeholder in case there were other things that came up, which was 
determined that it was not needed. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she would like to have a special meeting to discuss with the new 
Councilmembers that were incoming.  
 
 Councilman Harjo made a motion to approve the Special City Council Minutes from December 16, 2025 
from the Consent Agenda. Councilwoman Garvey seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman 
Brennan; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; nay. The motion 
passed by majority vote.  
 
 12) Approve Amendment 1 to the construction and development reimbursement agreement with the 
Mountain Home Urban Renewal Agency for the Railroad Park Plaza project, and authorize the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign. 
 
 Mayor Sykes asked Decker Sanders to come forward. 

 
Decker Sanders had a discussion with Paul Fitzer about his concerns with the GUHO contract and how it 

conflicted with one of the funding agreements. 
 
Councilman Harjo said that this agenda item was strictly to the City’s agreement with the URA and 

explained the process of how the URA funds the City project, the agreement with the URA of the URA to pay the 
City. He continued to explain that the City’s agreement to pay GUHO would be a passthrough of funding from the 
URA to GUHO.  

 
 There was a discussion between the Council, Paul Fitzer, Decker Sanders and the Mayor regarding the 
payment schedule and about asking GUHO to make it a 45-day like the agreement with the URA.  
 
 Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve Amendment 1 to the construction and development 
reimbursement agreement with the Mountain Home Urban Renewal Agency. Councilman Harjo seconded the 
motion. Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilman Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; 
aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 2) Approve the agreement with Azuga and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
 Councilman Harjo asked Paul Fitzer if he had time to look over the contract. 
 
 Paul Fitzer said the contract was the same one he drafted, with approved modifications. He noted that no 

Page 10 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

further changes appeared to be proposed, but concerns remained about whether the data collected could be 
subject to public records requests. He added that any such request would need to be reviewed to ensure it did not 
compromise the City’s systems or public safety. 
 
 Mayor Sykes explained that the software would be used to track City vehicles. He said the City would 
occasionally receive calls reporting Public Works and other City vehicles speeding outside city limits, and the 
software allowed staff to verify vehicle activity and determine whether drivers were following the law. He also noted 
that the program included a reward system for drivers. 
 
 Chris Curtis, Public Works Director, said that another big thing was if a citizen stated that a sweeper hit a 
vehicle, they would be able to determine if a sweeper was actually in the area. He also discussed how the 
incentive program would work. 
 
 There was a discussion between Councilman Harjo, Mayor Sykes, and Councilwoman Garvey regarding 
the usage of the software, what vehicles or equipment it would be used for, and other potential alternatives.  
 
 There was a discussion regarding the cost of our current software versus the requested change, and how 
much money would be saved.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to table Old Business 2 until the next council meeting. 
Councilwoman Garvey seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman 
Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 3) Discussion regarding Councilman Brennan’s motion pertaining to Action Item 4 of the Special Meeting  
on December 16, 2025. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she felt like her questions regarding this were answered when 
discussing the Special City Council Meeting minutes from December 16, 2025. 
 
ORDINANCE 
 
 1) Ordinance 1813 – to Zone C-3 Albatross Greens. 
 
 Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve Ordinance 1813 and hear the reading for its one and only 
reading time. Councilwoman Wirkkala seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilwoman Wirkkala; 
aye, Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman Garvey; aye, Councilman Brennan; aye. The motion passed by 
unanimous vote.  
 
 The City Clerk read the Ordinance for its first and final reading.  
 
 Mayor Sykes asked, “Does the Council wish this ordinance to pass.” 
 
 The vote goes as follows: Councilman Brennan; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilwoman 
Garvey; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
 1) Presentation Mayor Sykes. 
 
 Mayor Sykes thanked Councilman Brennan and Councilwoman Garvey for their service and that they 
would be leaving Mountain Home better than they found it. He presented both departing members of Council with 
cards. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
 1) Councilwoman Garvey’s departing comments. 
 
 Councilwoman Garvey thanked her husband and her group of friends and family for their support. She 
said that it had been the most rewarding four years.  
 

Page 11 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

 2) Councilman Brennan’s departing comments. 
 
 Councilman Brennan reflected on his eight years of service and thanked his wife for her support, those 
who supported his campaigns, and the Idaho State Police District 3 for accommodating his schedule. He also 
thanked the citizens for their trust, City staff for their work, and expressed confidence in the new Council members, 
encouraging them to act in the community’s best interest. He continued to ask that they not let an individual person 
or entity sway them for their own personal agenda that was not in the interest of the majority. 
 

Councilman Brennan identified ongoing challenges for the City, including the wastewater system and the 
future dispatch contract, and concluded by thanking the Council, the Mayor, and City leadership and legal staff for 
helping him grow personally and professionally during his time in office. 
 
 3) City Council Member Comments. 
 
 Councilman Harjo said that the combined 12 years of knowledge between Councilman Brennan and 
Councilwoman Garvey was a massive benefit to the Council. He thanked them both for their knowledge, successes 
and guidance.  
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she learned so much from Councilman Brennan and that Councilwoman 
Garvey no matter what they disagreed on, there was still respect between them.  

 
ADJOURN SINE DIE 

 
Councilman Harjo asked that Councilman Brennan adjourn the meeting. 

 
OATH OF OFFICE TO ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 
 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk, administered the Oath of Office to Councilman Sanders and Councilman McCarthy. 
 
MAYOR CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Sykes called the meeting to order at 6:25 P.M. A quorum was established with Councilman Sanders, 
Councilman McCarthy, Councilwoman Wirkkala, Councilman Harjo, and Mayor Sykes being present. 
 
REMARKS 
 
 1) Mayor Sykes 
  

Mayor Sykes congratulated the new Council members and told them the role would be both rewarding and 
challenging. He said City staff, and he would be available to support them and encouraged them to ask questions 
at any time. He noted they would attend Elected Officials AIC training to learn the dos and don’ts and said he 
looked forward to working with them. 

 
 2) Councilman McCarthy 
 
 Councilman McCarthy thanked the Mayor, Council, City staff, family & friends, and the residents of 
Mountain Home. He stated that he was grateful for the opportunity to serve, and he was committed to serve with 
integrity, diligence, and respect for all residents. He continued to say that he was committed to creating a city of 
safety, opportunity, and hope for this generation and for those yet to come. 
 
 3) Councilman Sanders  
 
 Councilman Sanders thanked those that voted for him and the City during his campaign where he made 
a point that his process would be to trust and verify, and that he would be a representative that would be a public 

Page 12 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

servant rather than a public official. He ended with “let’s get the hard work started”. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to elect a new City Council President. 
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to elect Councilman Sanders as the new City Council President. 

Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman 
Wirkkala; aye, Councilman McCarthy; aye, Councilman Sanders; abstained. The motion passed by majority vote. 

 
2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations and 

Finding of Facts for annexation with conditions. 
 
Councilman Harjo made a motion to approve the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations 

and Finding of Facts for annexation with conditions. Councilwoman Wirkkala seconded the motion. The vote goes 
as follows: Councilman Sanders; aye, Councilman McCarthy; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman 
Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 
3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to amend City Code 8-1B-1-E Sidewalk, Curbs, and Gutters, 8-4-5 

Excavation Fee, and 8-4-6 Bonding Fees.  
 
Councilman Harjo said that there were some discussions had around City Hall, and Chris Curtis informed 

him that it had been roughly 20 years since that section of code had been updated. He said that the purpose of 
this was to take the fees out of the ordinance and to set them right resolution of the Council as it would give more 
maneuverability. 

 
Councilman Harjo made a motion to amend City Code 8-1B-1-E Sidewalk, Curbs, and Gutters, 8-4-5 

Excavation Fee, and 8-4-6 Bonding Fees. 
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala asked for clarification as Item 4 was setting a public hearing for those fees. 
 
Tiffany Belt explained the clerical process and all the required steps that would need to be followed.  
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala seconded the motion. 
 
Councilman McCarthy and Chris Curtis discussed the reason behind increasing the fees and it being based 

on increasing the cost for the City staff, cost of materials, cost of goods and services at 2026 values instead of 
2006 values.  

 
The vote goes as follows: Councilman McCarthy; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Sanders; 

aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
4) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to set a Public Hearing for February 10, 2026, on the increase in 

Street Fees. 
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to set a Public Hearing for February 10, 2026, on the increase in 

Street Fees. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman Harjo; Councilman 
Sanders; aye, Councilman McCarthy; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 
5) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to allow City Staff to draft a formal agreement with Marathon Cheese 

to use the parking lot at Optimist Park during the facility expansion project. 
 
Mayor Sykes said that his thought process was to allow them to park there, however he wanted to get a 

more formal agreement to see if that would be doable. He wanted to make sure the City wasn’t liable if something 

Page 13 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

were to happen.  
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to allow City Staff to draft a formal agreement with Marathon 

Cheese to use the parking lot at Optimist Park during the facility expansion project. Councilman Harjo seconded 
the motion. 

 
Councilman Harjo asked to say something before taking a vote. He wanted to make sure that we were not 

being too cumbersome on Elmore County Sportsmans use on those trailers and that they have access that was 
preserved as they do have a lease for that over a 10-year duration. He also mentioned finding out if the Police 
Department and Public Works had any concerns, discussion on dust mitigation and maybe temporary fencing if 
needed as items to take into consideration.  

 
Mayor Sykes agreed and thanked Councilman Harjo for that request. 
 
The vote goes as follows: Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilman McCarthy; 

aye, Councilman Sanders; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
FINAL COMMENTS 
 
 Councilman Sanders made a motion in accordance to Idaho Code 74-204(4)(c), to add to the agenda a 
discussion on an item regarding the funding, timing and conduct for the Railroad Park contract.. He said that this 
item could not be requested earlier as some of the information needed was only received today from a public 
records request. Councilwoman Wirkkala seconded the motion. 
 
 Mayor Sykes let Councilman Sanders know that all he needed to do was have three council members say 
this is what you want on the next item to add it.  
 
 Councilman Sanders said that he considered this to be a time sensitive issue and had a financial impact, 
he would like to have a discussion this evening.  
 
 Mayor Sykes and Paul Fitzer discussed adding items to the end of the agenda and it was determined that 
you could, although typically it would be done at the beginning of the meeting and the reason behind the urgency 
would need to be stated.  
 
 The vote goes as follows: Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman McCarthy; 
aye, Councilman Sanders; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 Councilman Sanders said that he had a PowerPoint presentation that he wanted to share to go along with 
his discussion request. He stated for the record that he was not opposed to the project, he had some concerns 
including funding and time and went on to share his presentation. 
 
 Councilman Harjo said that having been present for the budget discussions, he disagreed with Councilman 
Sanders view of the costs assessed with phasing the project versus doing the project all at once. He also went on 
to say that there were a lot of detailed in person conversations that took place outside of the information obtained 
via a public records request. He said that he appreciated the effort that was put in, but stated that it was lacking in 
context to be accurate and to have a discussion. He then asked if Councilman Sanders had the goal of delaying 
the project and undoing what had already been done. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she appreciated Councilman Sanders work. She asked Paul Fitzer if this 
was an action item or if it was a discussion. She then said that she would support anything Councilman Sanders 
wanted to do.  
 

Councilman Sanders said that any City funds used for the project would replace potential outside funding 
and reduce money going back into the community through subcontracting. He said he preferred to avoid that 

Page 14 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

outcome and suggested the Council consider exercising the contract under Articles 8 and 12 as tools in deciding 
whether to proceed, especially given the time constraints and the goal of maximizing available funding. 

 
Mayor Sykes discussed the conversations and meeting regarding funding and in-kind work. He said that 

he did not understand the talking point of economic loss of a million dollars when the people of the City would be 
spending their money in downtown Mountain Home. He then asked if we did, for example, a million dollars of 
economic disservice to the City by using in-kind work to complete the pool. 

 
Councilman Sanders said that URA funds come from a separate tax stream that must be spent in the 

project area and directly benefit the local economy. He explained that any City contribution removes available URA 
funding and requires the City to replace it with taxpayer dollars. He noted that the URA was close to fully funding 
the project and questioned whether it was worth using City funds at all. 

 
Councilman Harjo said the contracts had already been executed and the agreement with Pioneer remained 

in effect. He noted that years of work had gone into reaching this point and that delaying the project could create 
complications, including potential legal and contractual issues. He explained that pushing the timeline would likely 
increase overall project costs due to rising prices and could also affect the donation agreement with Pioneer. He 
added that URA leadership had stated they were pleased with Pioneer’s donation because it allowed the project 
to move forward in a single phase and freed additional funds for use within the revenue allocation area. 

 
Councilman McCarthy, Mayor Sykes, and Tiffany Belt discussed the contingency funds and contracts and 

agreements. 
 
Councilman McCarthy, Chris Curtis, and Mayor Sykes discussed what the in-kind work looked like and 

how it would push back other projects that the City had planned.  
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala asked if a Special Meeting could be called in order to make the discussion an 

action item. 
 
Councilman Sanders and Councilman McCarthy supported the request for a Special Meeting. 
 
Paul Fitzer said the comment raised by Councilman Harjo was his primary concern, as he did not want the 

City to risk breaching a contract it had already executed. He said he understood Councilman Sanders’ logic 
regarding the benefits of using another taxing entity’s funding, but emphasized that the City could not unilaterally 
delay or change the project without potentially violating existing agreements. He noted that any changes would 
need to be voluntary modifications agreed to by all parties. Without having the contracts in front of him, he said the 
situation made him uneasy, especially if construction was imminent. 

 
Mayor Sykes said to Councilman Sanders that these were the types of conversations he wished that in 

the future, he would come into City Hall and discuss in person ahead of time. He said that he wished that of all the 
Council would do that in the future.  

 
Councilman Sanders said that he knew in order to have a Special Meeting that there had to be at least 24-

hour notice to post an agenda, which would take Wednesday, but that would open Thursday up to have the issues 
discussed and a decision made. He said that the partners involved could be invited to be a part of the discussion 
and then action could be taken. 

 
Paula Szfranski, City Treasurer, said that she would like to offer a different perspective for the Council to 

consider. She said that as a staff executive, she saw it as training opportunities for the different departments 
involved in the project. She said that she saw it as a tremendous opportunity for staff. 

 
Councilman McCarthy and Councilwoman Wirkkala both discussed how training in real time would open 

the City up for liability if an accident were to occur.  
 

Page 15 of 81



##### 

Council Minutes – January 13, 2026 

Mayor Sykes and Paul Fitzer discussed going forward with the groundbreaking tomorrow and how until a 
different agreement was negotiated, they needed to operate as the agreements had been executed. 

 
There was continued discussion about funding and what making changes to the agreements could mean 

for the City.  
 
Councilman Sanders requested that a Special City Council Meeting take place on January 15, 2026 at 

5:30 PM and Councilwoman Wirkkala and Councilman McCarthy agreed.  
 
Mayor Sykes said that for the time being, the ribbon cutting will go forward tomorrow and that work would 

still continue. He meant no disrespect to the Council, but he did not want to put the City in a position for a lawsuit. 
He said that he would reach out to GUHO, Pioneer, and the URA and invite them to the meeting.  

 
ADJOURN 
 
 There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 7:54 p.m. by 
orders from Mayor Sykes. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

       ___________________________________   
       Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 
  
 
ATTEST:  _______________________________ 
         Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 16 of 81



##### 

 

Council Minutes – January 15, 2026 

AGENDA 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 15th, 2026 AT 5:30 P.M.  
 AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 
  
  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with 
any person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature 
of the contact. 

 
 AGENDA ITEM 

1) Discussion/Decision with relevant parties and City Legal regarding Railroad Park project 
concerns, contracts, and in-kind work. 

 
ADJOURN  

      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 81



##### 

 

Council Minutes – January 15, 2026 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 15th, 2026 AT 5:30 P.M.  
 AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 
 

The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at Mountain Home City Hall, 160 South 3rd 
East, Mountain Home, Idaho, on January 15th, 2026. A quorum was established with Councilman Harjo, Councilwoman 
Wirkkala, Councilman McCarthy, Councilman Sanders, and Mayor Sykes.  

 
Councilman Sanders made a motion to amend the agenda  to add “/Decision” to Agenda Item 1. Councilwoman 

Wirkkala seconded the motion. The vote goes as follows: Councilman Sanders; aye, Councilman McCarthy; aye, 
Councilwoman Wirkkala; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
  
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had any contact with any person regarding 
any items on this Special City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 

 
Councilman Sanders said that he received email from Dennis Pearl and Nicholas Gatjen and had a conversation with 

Mayor Sykes.  
 
Councilman Harjo said that he received an email from Dennis Pearl. 
 
Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she received an email from Dennis Pearl. 
 
Councilman McCarthy said that he received an email from Dennis Pearl and Nicholas Gatjen. He also had 

conversations with Hunter Dill, Daniel Brennan, and Becky Garvey. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 
 
 1) Discussion/Decision with relevant parties and City Legal regarding Railroad Park project concerns, contracts, and 
in-kind work. 
 
 Councilman Sanders apologized for how the issue was brought forward, saying the timing was due to circumstances 
and concern that it would not otherwise be discussed. He said his goal was to gather information on possible alternatives and 
then allow the Council to vote on how to proceed. He also asked the Mayor about the response from project partners to the 
invitations. 
 
 Mayor Sykes said that he asked them all personally, and due to the short notice they were unavailable or had spoken 
enough already.  
 
 Councilman Sanders said that his next question was directed to Legal, regarding the questions that were had 
regarding the contract and the abilities within the contract. 
 
 Paul Fitzer, City Attorney, said he had reviewed all agreements and addendums, including those with the contractor 
and the URA. He explained that the City had three options: proceed under the existing contract, modify the agreement with 
consent of all parties, or terminate the agreement. He said modifications were allowed under the contract but could create 
complications due to payment schedules and subcontractor commitments. He cautioned that while modification would not 
constitute a breach, it could have significant downstream impacts and should be approached carefully. 
 
 There was a discussion going through sections of the CM/GC contract regarding the final payment requirements and 
clarification on the contingency fee portion. 
 
 Councilman Sanders stated that without all critical partners present, the Council could not properly evaluate the 
opportunity, assess risks, or determine feasibility, but felt obligated to raise the issue in the interest of potential taxpayer 
savings.  
 
 Councilman Harjo questioned the purpose of the meeting, noting that the contracts were already executed, the 
project was underway, and that delaying or canceling it could have significant consequences. He repeatedly emphasized the 
need for clarity on what specific action or outcome the Council was actually seeking before proceeding. 
 
 Councilman Sanders stated that the City’s financial contribution to the project had not been clearly defined and that 
existing funding only covered part of the overall contract. He said the Council needed to discuss what actions were possible, 
including validating the current agreements, modifying them if partners were willing, or considering termination as a last resort. 
He emphasized that the purpose of the discussion was to determine whether any of these options were in the City’s best 
interest before bringing forward a formal motion. 
 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala said she supported further discussion to determine whether there was a funding shortfall. 
She stated she did not want to terminate the project, but suggested a short delay could be considered if it would avoid 
significant taxpayer costs. She asked legal counsel to clarify whether the contract allowed for such a delay. 
 
 Paul Fitzer summarized the three potential options of action as continuation, delay, or cancellation of the project. He 
said that he was happy to hear that cancellation of the project option was not being entertained. He also said that his legal 
advice was to not jeopardize option one, continuation of the project, by chasing a dime by spending a dollar. He said that 
option two, delay, is pursuant to all parties agreeing. 
 
 Councilman Sanders made a motion to move forward with the existing contracts and continued contract management 
to see the project and the contracts of all involved to fruition. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 
 

Page 18 of 81



##### 

 

Council Minutes – January 15, 2026 

There was continued discussion between Council regarding the in-kind work and costs and potential cost savings 
possibilities and whether there was favor towards continuation or delay of the project, but no one wanted to cancel the project. 

 
Councilman Sanders extended his thanks to Councilman Harjo for his support on the motion and asked Mayor Sykes 

to call for the question.  
 
The vote goes as follows: Councilman Sanders; aye, Councilman Harjo; aye, Councilwoman Wirkkala; nay, 

Councilman McCarthy; aye. The motion passed by majority vote.  
 

ADJOURN 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 6:18 P.M. by orders from 

Mayor Sykes.   
 
 
 
              
       Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:        

   Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 19 of 81



Page 20 of 81



Page 21 of 81



Page 22 of 81



Page 23 of 81



Page 24 of 81



Page 25 of 81



Page 26 of 81



Page 27 of 81



Page 28 of 81



Page 29 of 81



Page 30 of 81



Page 31 of 81



Page 32 of 81



Page 33 of 81



Page 34 of 81



Page 35 of 81



Page 36 of 81



Page 37 of 81



Resolution #03-2026R – Page 1  

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. #03-2026R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, APPROVING THE RECOMMENDED REAPPOINTMENT 
OF A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO. 
 
WHEREAS, there has been established by the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, an urban renewal agency entitled 
the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, and, 
 
WHEREAS, in order to provide for proper administration of the Agency, a Board of Commissioners was 
established and appointed and, 
 
WHEREAS, the term of appointment of one board member will expire on January 1, 2026, and Mayor Rich Sykes has 
recommended the reappointment of Alan Bermensolo to serve a full four-year term as commissioner of the 
Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Home has reviewed the recommended reappointment and wishes 
to consent to and approve the said reappointment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, 
as follows: 
 
The Mayor’s recommended reappointment of Alan Bermensolo to serve on the Board of Commissioners of the 
Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, is hereby approved, and his new term shall 
expire on January 31, 2029, or when his successor is appointed and qualified. 
 
  

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this ______ day of January 2026. 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Mountain Home, Idaho, this _____ day of January 2026. 

 
 
 

 

Rich Sykes, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

(SEAL) 
 

 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

Page 38 of 81



Page 39 of 81



Page 40 of 81



Page 41 of 81



Page 42 of 81



Page 43 of 81



Page 44 of 81



  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request Summary 

A request by Jadon Schneider, on behalf of Gary Michael Aslin and Cameron Harlan Aslin, to annex and 
zone to R-4 a parcel of land approximately ten point two eight (10.28) acres in size. The parcel of land is 
located on the South side of SW Smith Road, between South 5th West Street and Highway 51. This parcel 
abuts Morning View Subdivision #4, on the parcels east side. The parcel is South of Blue Yonder 
Subdivision. The parcels to the West and South of this parcel are in the County and Zoned AG.  
 
This application is running contemporaneously with a preliminary plat for the Aslin Ranch Subdivision 
and annexation is not contingent on approval of the preliminary plat.  
 
Single Family dwellings are permitted in the R-4 Residential zone per 9-7-4 Land Use Chart. 
 

History 
This parcel is currently in the County and is zoned AG. The parcel has multiple accessory structures. These 
structures will be demolished.  

 
Zoning 
The parcels to the North (RPA3S06E358415) are in the Blue Yonder Subdivision and Zoned R-4 Residential 
and inside the City Limits. Blue Yonder has a mix of residential uses including Single family, duplex units, 
and four plex units. The parcels to the East of this parcel are in the Morning View Subdivision and zoned 
R-4, they are inside the City Limits and are single family residential uses.  The Parcel to the South 
(RP04S06E021420) of this parcel is in the County, is zoned AG, and is a residential use. The parcels to the 
west of this parcel (RP04S06E020740 & RP04S06E020730) are also outside the city limits, are zoned Ag, 
and are residential use.  
 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this area as residential.  

To: Planning & Zoning Commission 
Presenter: Brenda Ellis, Senior City Planner 
Request: A request to Annex and Zone to    
R-4 Residential a parcel of land consisting of 
10.28 acres +/- currently addressed as 1700 
SW Lilac Drive. This parcel is located on the 
South side of SW Smith Road, between 
South 5th West Street and Highway 51.   
(RP04S06E020720) 
Application: PZ-25-32 
Applicant:  
Jadon Schneider 
Boise, ID 83707 

P&Z Public Hearing: 12/16/2025                      STAFF REPORT 

Page 45 of 81



  
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Landscaping 
Upon development this parcel will be subject to the R-4 residential zone landscape requirements.  
 
Fire 
Fire commented that the proposed subdivision for this parcel is just at the maximum of 1.5 mile “Standard 
Response Area” distance for serviceability.  
 
The following conditions are required to be met or agreed upon prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
Any issues will be required to be resolved prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  
 
The number of dwelling units exceed 30, and only one access road. Therefore, all dwelling units shall be 
provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system. 
 
Fire hydrants shall be spaces as to not exceed three hundred (300) feet between hydrants.  
 
Non-sprinklered buildings that require a permit, no portion of the building shall extend beyond 125 feet 
from the front of curb, of the property the structure is on. This specifically applies to Block 2, Lots 2-8. If 
the building or structure is fully equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system, this distance may 
be increased with the approval of the fire code official.  
 
Street 
The proposed development will have one access road off SW Smith Road into the proposed Aslin Ranch 
Subdivision.  
 
No comments were made regarding the annexation from the Street Department.  
 
Water 
Per Keller Associates review of the preliminary plat, and Public Works response to their review: 

1. If Blue Yonder No. 4 does not proceed with construction, Aslin Ranch will be required to install 
the 16-inch water main along the frontage per the Water Mater Plan. 

2. The Water Master Plan shows a 12-inch water line from Smith Road down through this 
development that loops back to the west into the now Morning View Subdivision. The Morning 
View Subdivision has been constructed in a manner that would not easily accommodate this loop. 
The City should consider the next development to the west of the Aslin Ranch Subdivision to 
construct a larger diameter waterline.  
(Per the Public Works Director, the City will address this line item if and when future development 
to the West is proposed.)  

3. The waterline on Jimmy Street should be equipped with provision for flushing and future 
development to the south to connect into.  
(Public Works agrees with this, and will verify that this is addressed in the development plans.)  

Sewer 
Per Keller Associates review regarding the proposed development: 
 “Similar to other recent developments, with the addition of this development, this will accelerate 
the need for wastewater treatment facility upgrades such as winter storage, chlorine contact chamber 
improvements, and aeration. Completing the winter storage improvements will be needed to service the 
City’s committed capacity.”   

Page 46 of 81



  
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

(Public Works is aware of the need for upgrades to the wastewater treatment facility and is considering 
options for improvements, which include additional winter storage and upgrading to a mechanical 
treatment facility.) 
 
No comments were made regarding the annexation from the Wastewater Department. 
 
Water Rights Fee 
This annexation is subject to the Water Rights Fee. Water rights fees shall be imposed upon and paid at 
the time of annexation of property that was not previously a part of the City. Water rights fee amount for 
this parcel is 10.28 acres times $2,000.00 which equals $20,560.00 to be paid at time of annexation.  
 
Approval Process 
Under Title 9, Chapter 6, Section 4: Annexation, The Planning & Zoning Commission shall hold at least 
one public hearing for each annexation and zoning request as prescribed by Idaho Code and this chapter, 
public hearings. Further, the Commission shall file its recommendation on each annexation application 
with the city clerk as prescribed in this chapter.  
 
The Commission's recommendation on annexation applications shall be in accordance with the following 
policies: 
 
a.   That the annexation shall incorporate the city sewer planning area. 
b.   Be consistent with existing areas of impact agreements. 
c.   Attempt to balance costs of services with anticipated revenues. 
d.   Promote other population balance goals, contiguous development, and prevention of costs due to 
leapfrog development. 
e.   Promote to keep city limit boundaries that are squared off and not irregular in shape. 
 
Notification & Responses 

• A notification was sent to forty-seven (47) property owners within 300 ft. on 11/26/2025. 

• A notification was sent to twenty-nine (29) Public Entities on 11/26/2025. 

• Notice of Public Hearing was in the Mountain Home News on 11/26/2025 and 12/06/2025.  

• Notice of the Public Hearing was posted on the property on 11/25/2025. 

• As of 12/10/2025, we have received No letters in opposition, neutral, or in favor of the request. 
 

Applicable Regulations or Codes 
City Code 9-6-10:  Public Hearing Procedure 

City Code 9-6-4: Annexation 

Idaho State Code 50-222: Annexation by Cities 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance  

The land use map designates planned land uses within the city and the City’s Area of Impact, illustrating 
the City’s goals and objectives for the framework of the community and future development. (pg. 39) 

• The Future Land-Use Map designates the area as Residential. 

Comprehensive Plan 6.3 Land Use Future: Growth Accommodation Annexation. The City of Mountain 
Home will continue to look toward landowner willingness for annexation. (Comp. Plan Pg. 40).  

Page 47 of 81



  
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

• The property owner has granted permission for the applicant to request annexation. 

The residential land use per the comprehensive plan provides for the full range of residential uses and 
limited office land uses. Note 1 in the 6.7 Land Use Designation Table states that the City reserves the 
right to allow development based on compatibility with existing adjacent uses including, but not limited 
to, the transition of lot sizes, compatibility of use, the intensity of use, the overall design of a project, the 
impact to infrastructure, and the ability to serve a specific use or project.  (Comp. Plan Pg. 43).  

• The surrounding properties are residential. Morning View Subdivision to the east of this 
site is a single-family residential neighborhood. Blue Yonder Subdivision to the North of 
this parcel is approved and will contain a mix of single-family dwellings, duplex dwellings, 
and multi-family units.  The land to the west is in the county and is residential. The land 
to the south is residential and is in the County.   

 
Chapter 2, Community Vision 
Per the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan, determined that housing is one of the City’s top five (5) 
priorities (pg. 9).  
 
Chapter 3. Economic Development 
To maintain a balance of managed growth, suitable land and adequate infrastructure must be appropriate 
and available when marketing Mountain Home to potential incoming companies. 
 
Economic development is affected by lack of workforce housing. This includes concerns for Mountain 
Home Air Force Base’s operations and missions, the proposed rail park, in addition to others. (pg. 17) 
 
Chapter 4. Population   
4.7 Goal 1, is to proactively manage growth by remaining proactive and become highly focused on 
balancing the housing needs in concert with ensuring that population growth does not outpace the City’s 
ability to provide services, and to ensure that no development is granted building privileges unless, water, 
sewer, gas, and power availability and capacity can be secured/verified. (pg. 27) 
 
Chapter 5, Housing 
Availability of a mix of housing types is essential for the social structure of a community. (pg. 28) 
 
Single-family homes are the highest priority for all age groups. (Pg. 31) 
 
The City’s goal is to promote a variety of housing choices. (pg.33)  
 
Chapter 6, Land Use 
The Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map provides a clear picture of what the City’s objectives are for 
growth and development. (pg. 39)  
 
The Comprehensive Plan states the importance of exploring the allowance of a full range of housing 
types. (pg. 36).  
 
The residents of the community see the need for growth which seems to be land use that focuses on 
immediate needs: jobs and housing. (pg. 41)  
 
6.13 Tie development approvals to availability of infrastructure, both existing and proposed. 

Page 48 of 81



  
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
6.13 Goal 4 Work to ensure that anticipated growth areas are supported with appropriate infrastructure 
for expansion. To encourage growth in areas that may be served most efficiently with existing 
infrastructure.   
 
Staff Review 
Staff has determined that given the subject property’s location to the existing R-4 Residential Zones, the 
Future Land-Use Map identifying the area as residential, the R-4 Zoning designation is appropriate.  
 
A Water Rights Fee shall be imposed upon and paid at the time of annexation of property. 
 
This annexation has been requested in writing by the applicant. The property owners, Gary and Cameron 
Aslin, have granted permission for the applicant to submit the application. This parcel is contiguous to 
the City Limits of the City of Mountain Home and is within the Area of Impact.  
 
Water and sewer services are in close proximity to this site to allow for service connections and is subject 
to the conditions listed in the letter from Keller Associates.   
 
This parcel can be serviced by Fire and Police Services.  
 
Conclusion 
If the Commission determines the proposed request appropriate, you may recommend approval to the 
City Council, as presented, subject to the following conditions.   

1) Subject to site plan amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and Zoning 
Officials to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

2) All future development will comply with the uses and bulk & coverage controls of the R- 4 
Zoning District.  

3) A Water Rights Fee in the amount of $2,000.00 per acres shall be paid at the time of 
annexation.  

4) All development regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain Home’s 
ability to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

Attachments 
1. Vicinity  

2. Current Zoning Map 

3. Future Land Use Map 

4. Project Narrative 

5. Proposed Preliminary Plat  

6. Grading Plan 

7. Fire Review Letter 

8. Keller Letter 

9. City Response letter 

10. Site Photos 

 

Page 49 of 81



Page 50 of 81



Page 51 of 81



Page 52 of 81



Page 53 of 81



Page 54 of 81



Page 55 of 81



Page 56 of 81



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

Staff Report 
Request Summary 

A request by Jadon Schneider, on behalf of Gary Michael Aslin and Cameron Harlan Aslin, to approve 

the Aslin Ranch Preliminary Plat, consisting of approximately 10.28 acres. This application is running 

contemporaneously with an annex and zone to R-4 application. Annexation is Not contingent on approval 

of the preliminary plat. The development is located on the South side of Smith Road, East of State Highway 

51, and West of SW Besra Drive. The parcel ID is RP04S06E020720. 
 
The development will consist of a total of Fifty-three (53) lots with an average lot size of 6,344 square 
feet. The development will provide a total of forty-four (44) Single family dwelling lots, and nine (9) 
common lots. The development provides for approximately 0.57 acres of qualified opens space. The 
developer is proposing to provide a site amenity in the form of a Bocce Ball court or a pickleball court on 
one of the proposed common lots. Access to this development will be from Smith Road. 
 
The parcels to the North (RPA3S06E358415) are in the Blue Yonder Subdivision Zoned R-4 and inside the 
City Limits. Blue Yonder has a mix of residential uses including Single family, duplex, and four plex units. 
The parcels to the East of this parcel are in the Morning View Subdivision zoned R-4, they are inside the 
City Limits and are single family residential uses.  The Parcel to the South (RP04S06E021420) of this parcel 
is in the County, is zoned AG, and is a residential use. The parcels to the west of this parcel 
(RP04S06E020740 & RP04S06E020730) are also outside the city limits, are zoned Ag, and are residential 
use.  
 
History 
The subject property has been essentially historically vacant. There is a trailer and some existing 
structures that are used for storage that will be demolished.  
 

To: Planning & Zoning Commission 
Presenter: Brenda Ellis, Senior City Planner 
Request: To approve a Preliminary Plat for Aslin 
Ranch Subdivision approximately 10.28 acres +/- 
(PARCEL RP04S06E020720) The parcel of land is 
located South of and adjacent to Smith Road, East of 
State Highway 51, and west of SW Besra Drive. 
Application: PZ-25-33 
Applicant: Jadon Schneider of Bronze Bow Land 
Owner: 
Gary and Cameron Aslin 

Mountain Home, ID 83647 

P&Z Public Hearing: 12/16/2025 

 

Page 57 of 81



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

Additional Information: 

Landscaping 
This development is subject to the R-4 residential zone landscape requirements.  
 
Fire Review  
Fire commented that the proposed subdivision for this parcel is just at the maximum of 1.5 mile “Standard 
Response Area” distance for serviceability.  
 
The following conditions are required to be met or agreed upon prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
Any issues will be required to be resolved prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  
 
The number of dwelling units exceed 30, and only one access road. Therefore, all dwelling units shall be 
provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system. 
 
Fire hydrants shall be spaced as to not exceed three hundred (300) feet between hydrants. 
 
Non-sprinklered buildings that require a permit, no portion of the building shall extend beyond 125 feet 
from the front of curb, of the property the structure is on. This specifically applies to Block 2, Lots 2-8. If 
the building or structure is fully equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system, this distance may 
be increased with the approval of the fire code official.  
 
Building Department 
Building Department commented regarding adding the “SW” Designation in front of all Street Names. 
The street designated as Riley Court will need to be renamed. Tiana Court has been approved as the 
street name in place of Riley Court. E-911 was involved in the approval of the street names.  
 
Building Permits Issued in 2025 
From January 2025 through November 2025 there have been one hundred (100) building permits issued, 
utilizing 195 EDUs. Additionally, Meadows Mobile Home Park has been adding connections to the utility 
system. Since January Meadows has connected 28 units.  Overall, 223 EDU’s have been utilized. (90 Single 
Family units, 95 multifamily units, 10 manufactured homes, 28 Meadows Mobile Home Park = 223 EDUs) 
  
Traffic Impact Study 
A Traffic Impact was not required for this development.  
 
Streets 
Interior streets Right of Way will be fifty-two feet in width from back of sidewalk to back of sidewalk. 
Street 
 
ITD Response  
No response was received from ITD. 
 
Water 
Per Keller Associates review of the preliminary plat, and Public Works response to their review: 

1. If Blue Yonder No. 4 does not proceed with construction, Aslin Ranch will be required to install 
the 16-inch water main along the frontage per the Water Mater Plan. 

2. The Water Master Plan shows a 12-inch water line from Smith Road down through this 
development that loops back to the west into the now Morning View Subdivision. The Morning 

Page 58 of 81



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

View Subdivision has been constructed in a manner that would not easily accommodate this loop. 
The City should consider the next development to the west of the Aslin Ranch Subdivision to 
construct a larger diameter waterline.  
(Per the Public Works Director, the City will address this line item if and when future development 
to the West is proposed.)  

3. The waterline on Jimmy Street should be equipped with provision for flushing and future 
development to the south to connect into.  

 
Sewer 
Per Keller Associates review regarding the proposed development: 
 “Similar to other recent developments, with the addition of this development, this will accelerate 
the need for wastewater treatment facility upgrades such as winter storage, chlorine contact chamber 
improvements, and aeration. Completing the winter storage improvements will be needed to service the 
City’s committed capacity.”   
 
Police 
Made no comment 
 
Water Rights Fee 
Water Rights Fees in the amount of $2000.00 per acre are required for new development are required to 
be paid upon annexation. (10.28 x $2,000 = $20,560) 
 
Impact Fees 
This development is subject to the Impact Fees in place at the time of Building Permit issuance. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance  
The subject parcel is identified as “Residential” per the 2020 Mountain Home City Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Chapter 2, Community Vision 
Per the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan, determined that housing is one of the City’s top five (5) 
priorities (pg. 9).  
 
Chapter 3. Economic Development 
To maintain a balance of managed growth, suitable land and adequate infrastructure must be appropriate 
and available when marketing Mountain Home to potential incoming companies. 
 
Economic development is affected by lack of workforce housing. This includes concerns for Mountain 
Home Air Force Base’s operations and missions, the proposed rail park, in addition to others. (pg. 17) 
 
Chapter 4. Population   
4.7 Goal 1, is to proactively manage growth by remaining proactive and become highly focused on 
balancing the housing needs in concert with ensuring that population growth does not outpace the City’s 
ability to provide services, and to ensure that no development is granted building privileges unless, water, 
sewer, gas, and power availability and capacity can be secured/verified. (pg. 27) 
 
Chapter 5, Housing 
Availability of a mix of housing types is essential for the social structure of a community. (pg. 28) 
 

Page 59 of 81



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

Single-family homes are the highest priority for all age groups. (Pg. 31) 
 
The City’s goal is to promote a variety of housing choices. (pg.33)  
 
Chapter 6, Land Use 
The Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map provides a clear picture of what the City’s objectives are for 
growth and development. (pg. 39)  
 
The Comprehensive Plan states the importance of exploring the allowance of a full range of housing 
types. (pg. 36).  
 
The residents of the community see the need for growth which seems to be land use that focuses on 
immediate needs: jobs and housing. (pg. 41)  
 
6.13 Tie development approvals to availability of infrastructure, both existing and proposed. 
 
6.13 Goal 4 Work to ensure that anticipated growth areas are supported with appropriate infrastructure 
for expansion. To encourage growth in areas that may be served most efficiently with existing 
infrastructure.   
 
Chapter 12, Air Force Base 
Mountain Home Air Force Base is an essential part of the City of Mountain Home. 12.6 Goal 2 is to protect 
the viability and success of the base to accommodate expansions and/or new missions. The city will 
cooperate and work collaboratively with MHAFB officials in identifying strategies to meet the housing 
needs of military personnel and their families. (pg. 83) 
 

Notification & Responses 
• A notification was sent to forty-seven (47) property owners within 300 ft. on 11/26/2025. 

• A notification was sent to twenty-nine (29) Public Entities on 11/26/2025. 

• Notice of Public Hearing was in the Mountain Home News on 11/26/2025 and 12/06/2025.  

• Notice of the Public Hearing was posted on the property on 11/25/2025. 

• As of 12/10/2025, we have received No letters in opposition, neutral, or in favor of the request. 

Applicable Regulations or Codes  
Title 9 Chapter 16, Subdivisions 
City Code 9-16-3: Purpose: The purpose is to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare, and 
to provide for, the harmonious development of the area; The coordination of streets and roads within 
the subdivision with other existing or planned streets and roads; Adequate open space for travel, light, 
air and recreation; Adequate transportation, water drainage and sanitary facilities; The avoidance of 
scattered subdivision of land that would result in either of the following: 1. The lack of water supply, 
sewer service, drainage, transportation or other public services; and 2. The unnecessary imposition of an 
excessive expenditure of public funds for the supply of such services; The requirements as to the extent 
and the manner in which: 1. Streets and roads shall be created and improved; and 2. Water and sewer 
and other utility mains, piping connections or other facilities shall be installed; The manner and form of 
making and filing of any plat; and The administration of these regulations by defining the powers and 
duties of approval authorities. 

Page 60 of 81



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

9-16-10: Preliminary Plat: City of Mountain Home rules and regulations concerning the procedures and 
decisions, and criteria for a Preliminary Plat. 

9-6-10 Public Hearing Procedures 

Approval Process 
P&Z Commission Review & Action: 
The Commission shall review the preliminary plat, comments from the concerned persons and agencies, 
and the report from the administrator to arrive at a decision on the preliminary plat.  
 
(9-16-10: Preliminary Plat: F. Commission Review)  
In determining the acceptance of a proposed subdivision, the Commission shall consider the objects of 
this chapter and at least the following: 

1. The availability of public services to accommodate the proposed development. 
2. The continuity of the proposed development with the capital improvement program, if 

applicable. 
3. The public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; and 
4. The other health, safety, or environmental problems that may be brought to the Commission's 

attention. 
 
(9-16-10: Preliminary Plat: G. Commission Action on Preliminary Plat)  
The commission shall review and recommend to the council to approve, conditionally approve, 
disapprove, or table for additional information when acting on the preliminary plat. Upon granting or 
denying a preliminary plat the commission shall specify: 

1. The regulations and standards used in evaluating the application.  
2. The reasons for approval or denial; and  
3. The actions, if any, that the applicant could take to obtain plat approval. 

 
City Council Action: 
(9-16-10: Preliminary Plat: I. Council Action on Preliminary Plat) 
Upon recommendation from the Commission, the council will then either reject the plat or approve it 
subject to conditions that may be set forth. These conditions will be expressed in a written letter to the 
developer. The developer, after adding these conditions to the plat, will then resubmit it to the 
administrator for his review and approval of technical data, placement of utilities, etc. 
 
Conclusion 
If the Commission determines the proposed request appropriate, you may recommend approval to the 
City Council, as presented, subject to the following conditions, 

1. Subject to site plan amendments as required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and Zoning Officials 
to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 
 

2. The Final Plat and all future development will comply with the uses and bulk & coverage controls, 
landscaping, off street parking requirements, design, performance and development standards 
for R-4 subdivision development.  
 

3. Prior to a Final Plats being recorded the applicant shall receive all necessary approvals from the 
Central Health District regarding water and sewer infrastructure.  
 

Page 61 of 81



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

4. Per City Code 9-16-10(J), Failure to file and obtain the certification of the acceptance of the final 
plat application by the administrator within one year after action by the Commission shall cause 
all approvals of said preliminary plat to be null and void unless a one-year extension of time is 
applied for, thirty (30) days before the expiration, by the subdivider and granted by the 
Commission. A preliminary plat may be extended one time only, after which it shall be. 
 

5. Water Rights Fee shall be paid at annexation for RP04S06E020720.  
 

6. All development regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain Home’s ability 
to provide municipal water and wastewater services.  

 
Along with any additional conditions requested by the commission.  

Attachments 
1. Vicinity  

2. Current Zoning Map 

3. Future Land Use Map 

4. Project Narrative 

5. Proposed Preliminary Plat  

6. Grading Plan 

7. Fire Review Letter 

8. Keller Letter 

9. City Response letter 

10. Site Photos 

 

Page 62 of 81



Page 63 of 81



Page 64 of 81



Page 65 of 81



Page 66 of 81



Page 67 of 81



Page 68 of 81



  

P&Z Public Hearing: 12/16/2025                        Staff Report 

To: Planning & Zoning Commission 

Presenter: Brenda Ellis,  

Senior City Planner 

Request: To Annex and Zone to I-2 a 

parcel totaling approximately 272 acres 

located West of the City Airport and East 

of NW Bypass Road in Elmore County.  

(RP03S06E280015 and RP03S06E273150)  

Application: PZ-25-39 

Applicant: 

City of Mountain Home 

Mountain Home, ID 83647 

Comprehensive Staff Report 

Please 

Request Summary & Staff Recommendation 
To Annex and Zone to I-2 (Heavy Industrial), two parcel of land totaling approximately 272 acres located West of the City 
of Mountain Home Municipal Airport and East of Bypass Road in Elmore County. (RP03S06E280015 and RP03S06E273150). 
 
The property is eligible for annexation because it is contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Mountain Home. The 
property is owned by the City and ownership of these parcels protects the airport from encroachment and provides the 
potential to expand the runway at a later date if deemed in the best interest of the City by the governing authority. The city 
owned rail runs through these parcels. There are no current plans for development, however, The City of Mountain Home 
is working with Keller Associates for the purposes of creating a future long-term plan for the potential for multi-modal 
industrial development of the site. Bringing these parcels into the City will allow the city to process future applications upon 
approval of any future development plans approved by the governing authority.  
 
Property History  
The subject property is currently vacant with no previous development or improvements. The property has I-1 (light 
Industrial) zoning to the East, and the parcels are identified as Heavy Industrial on the future land use map. The parcels to 
the North, South and West are in the County and zoned General Agriculture (Ag) Zone and Light Industrial/Manufacturing 
(M1) Zone.  
 
The parcels were acquired by the City of Mountain Home in 2024.  
 
Approval Process 
The Planning & Zoning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing for each annexation and zoning request as 
prescribed by Idaho Code and this chapter’s public hearings. Further, the Commission shall file its recommendation on 
each annexation application with the city clerk as prescribed in this chapter.  
 
The Commission's recommendation on annexation applications shall be in accordance with the following policies: 
a.   That the annexation shall incorporate the city sewer planning area. 
b.   Be consistent with existing areas of impact agreements. 
c.   Attempt to balance costs of services with anticipated revenues. 
d.   Promote other population balance goals, contiguous development, and prevention of costs due to leapfrog 
development. 
e.   Promote keeping city limit boundaries that are squared off and not irregular in shape. 

Page 69 of 81



 
Notification & Responses 

• A notification was sent to seven (7) property owners within 300 ft. on 11/24/2025. 

• A notification was sent to twenty-eight (28) Public Entities within 300 ft. on 11/24/2025. 

• Notice of Public Hearing was in the Mountain Home News on 11/26/2023 and 12/3/2025.  

• Notice of the Public Hearing was posted on the property on 11/24/2025. 

• As of 12/10/2025, we have received No letters in support of the proposed Annex and Zone. 

• As of 12/10/2025, we have received no letters opposing the proposed Annex and Zone. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
The subject property is classified as "Heavy Industrial” per the 2020 Mountain Home City Comprehensive Plan. A zoning 
designation of "I-2 Heavy Industrial" based on the surrounding properties’ zoning and intended use.  
 
Chapter 13. A – Airport 
13.a.3 Land Use Compatibility. The FAA and the State of Idaho consider airport compatible land use planning, to be top 
priority for airport sponsors to be concerned with and addressed through local planning.  
 
Goal 13.A.8 Goal 3- Future development will be planned in a manner whereby phased development is possible over the 
planning period thus providing flexibility to the city to accommodate growth as demand warrants. 

Applicable Regulations or Codes 
Idaho Code Section 50-222, The City of Mountain Home is authorized to annex land into its corporate boundary.  

City Code 9-6-4, City of Mountain Home Annexation Regulations. 

Fire 
The Fire Department commented that this property is well outside of our standard area of response. At this time, no 
determination can be made on the Fire Departments ability to service this area. Depending on future development, the 
project may or may not be required to have additional fire safety features in place to provide for fire protection at this 
location. Conditions may be put on any future development to ensure that a reasonable standard of safety can be assured.  
 
Public Works 
Public Works Department has no concerns regarding annexation of these parcels. Any future Planned Uses/development 
will require staff review and approval. 
 
Water 
Water Department has no concerns regarding annexation of these parcels. Any future Planned Uses/development will 
require staff review and approval. 
 
The nearest water line to these parcels is at the end of Marathon Way.  
 
Wastewater 
Wastewater Department has no concerns regarding annexation of these parcels. Any future Planned Uses/development 
will require staff review and approval. 
 
The nearest Wastewater Line to these parcels is at the end of Marathon Way.  
 
Streets 
Streets Department has no concerns regarding annexation of these parcels. Any future Planned Uses/development will 
require staff review and approval. 
 

Page 70 of 81



This parcel has legal access to this parcel from Bypass Road. The city owns the Rail line that runs through these parcels and 
several others, there is an easement access that runs along the rail line from Haskett Street to Airbase Road which gives 
additional access to these parcels. In addition, these parcels are contiguous to the Airport property. 
 
Conclusion 
If the Commission determines the proposed request appropriate, you may recommend approval of the requested 
annexation to the City Council, along with the following conditions: 

1. Future development is subject to site plan amendments required by Building, Public Works, Fire, and Zoning Officials 

to comply with applicable City Codes and standards. 

2. All future development will comply with the use, bulk, and coverage controls of the I-2 (Heavy Industrial) Zoning 

District.  

3. Future development may be subject to Federal, State, or local requirements regarding development. 

4. All developments regarding this application will be subject to the City of Mountain Home’s ability to provide 
municipal water and wastewater services.  

 
Attachments 

1. Vicinity Map 

2. Current Zoning  

3. Future Land-use map 

4. County Zoning Map 

5. County Future Land Use Map  

6. Applicant Narrative 

 

Page 71 of 81



Ordinance No. 1814, page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1814 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, AMENDING 

SECTION 8-1B-1-E, ARTICLE B, CHAPTER 1, TITLE 8, BY REMOVING THE PERMIT 

FEE OF TWENTY DOLLARS ($20) AND ADDING FEE WILL BE SET BY RESOLUTION 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL; AMENDING SECTION 8-4-5, CHAPTER 4, TITLE 8 BY 

REMOVING THE EXCAVATION FEE OF FIFTY DOLLARS ($50) AND ADDING FEE 

WILL BE SET BY RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL; AMENDING SECTION 8-4-6, 

CHAPTER 4, TITLE 8 REMOVING THE BOND FEE OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($1000) AND ADDING BOND FEE WILL BE SET BY RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO, as follows: 

 

 Section 1: That section 8-1B-1-E, article B, Chapter 1, Title 8 of the city code of 

Mountain Home, Idaho, be hereby amended as follows:  

 

8-1B-1: SIDEWALKS, CURBS AND GUTTERS: 

 E.   Any person altering, removing, replacing, repairing or installing any portion of sidewalks 

and/or curbs and gutters shall first obtain a permit from the city's building department. A 

nonrefundable permit fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) ,set by resolution of  the City Council, 

shall be paid to the city at the time the permit is obtained. All sidewalks, curbs and gutters, 

corners, and/or approach and access ramps shall be installed in compliance with the current 

edition of the "Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction (ISPWC) Technical Manual" and 

the Americans with disabilities act (ADA), both of which may be reviewed on the city of 

Mountain Home website, with the following conditions. 

Section 2: That section 8-4-5, chapter 4, Title 8 of the city code of Mountain Home, 

Idaho, be hereby amended as follows:  

 

8-4-5: EXCAVATION FEES: 

Each applicant shall pay to the city a fee of fifty dollars ($50.00), set by resolution of the City 

Council for each excavation permit issued by the city's public works department. All permits 

will be picked up and paid for at the building department. All fees shall be nonrefundable.  

 

Section 3: That section 8-4-6, chapter 4, Title 8 of the city code of Mountain Home, 

Idaho, be hereby amended as follows:  

    

 

8-4-6: BONDING FEES: 

Page 72 of 81



Ordinance No. 1814, page 2 

All excavations (street cuts) shall be bonded with a cashier's check for one thousand dollars 

($1,000.00), an amount set by resolution of the City Council, which shall be refundable upon 

final inspection of the excavations or street cuts and acceptance by the city's public works and/or 

street department. The one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) bond shall be good for up to five (5) 

excavations (street cuts) at a time. No refund of the bond shall be made until all excavations have 

been accepted by the city. If a contractor wishes more than five (5) permits, an additional one 

thousand dollar ($1,000.00) bond shall be required. If the work is not finished within thirty (30) 

days from the commencement of the excavation or street cut, weather permitting, the bond will 

be forfeited. 

Section 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval, and 

publication. 

Page 73 of 81



Page 74 of 81



Page 75 of 81



Page 76 of 81



Page 77 of 81



Page 78 of 81



Page 79 of 81



Page 80 of 81



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

P.O. Box 10 ● Mountain Home, ID 83647  
www.mountain-home.us 

 

January 23, 2026 

 

RE: Fiber Optic Installation – Irrigation District Internet Connection 

City Council Meeting: January 27, 2026 

 

Council, 
 
This memo is to notify the City Council that City staff will be installing a fiber optic connection to 
provide internet services for the Irrigation District. 
 
The City of Mountain Home values its long-standing and collaborative partnership with the 
Irrigation District. This effort reflects our continued commitment to working cooperatively with 
local partners to improve infrastructure, enhance operational efficiency, and support services that 
benefit the broader community. 
 
The Irrigation District will be responsible for paying the ongoing monthly utility costs associated 
with the internet service. City staff will complete the installation using existing resources, and all 
staff time and related expenses will be carefully tracked to ensure transparency and 
accountability. 
 
Based on current estimates, the total cost for staff time and equipment is anticipated to be less 
than $570. At this time, no additional City funding is anticipated beyond this estimated level. 
 
This project represents another example of effective inter-agency collaboration and the City’s 
commitment to leveraging its expertise to support local partners in a cost-conscious and 
responsible manner. Staff will continue to monitor costs and will provide updates should 
circumstances change or additional approvals become necessary. 
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding this installation or the continued 
partnership with the Irrigation District. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Mayor Sykes 
 
 
T  (208) 587-2104 
mayor@mountain-home.us  

Page 81 of 81

http://www.mountain-home.us/
mailto:mayor@mountain-home.us

	 CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM)
	 PRESENTATIONS 
	1) Officer of the Year recognition and presentation b

	 RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE
	 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION
	 CONSENT AGENDA 
	1) Approval acceptance of minutes: Planning & Zoning 
	12-16-2025 Signed PZ Minutes

	2) Approval acceptance of minutes: Regular City Counc
	01-13-2026

	3) Approval acceptance of minutes: Special City Counc
	01-15-2026- Special

	4) Approve expenditures from 1/14/2026 to 1/27/2026 i
	Payment Approval ~ Council

	5) Treasurer's report for the period ending 12/31/202
	TR

	6) Approve the appointment of Amber Henninger to the 
	Henninger

	7) Pass resolution #03-2026R – Approving the Reappoin
	03-2026R-Reappointment fo Bermensolo to URA


	 OLD BUSINESS
	 NEW BUSINESS
	1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda
	2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and
	FoF PZ PZ-25-32 ANX Aslin
	Staff Report Aslin Ranch ANX  PZ-25-32

	3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and
	Fof PZ PZ-25-33 PPLAT Aslin
	PZ-25-33 PPLAT Aslin Ranch Staff Report

	4) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and
	Fof PZ PZ-25-39 ANX City
	PZ-25-39  ANX - Staff Report

	5) Workshop/discussion regarding the progression of t

	 ORDINANCE
	1) Ordinance 1814- Amending  City Code 8-1B-1-E Sidew
	1814 Street Ordinance- January 2026 


	 FINAL COMMENTS
	 ADJOURN
	 STAFF MEMO
	1) Staff report from the Wastewater Department.
	WWTP Generator parts
	Wastewater Mini Exca

	2) Staff Report from Fiber Optics Department.
	Fiber Supplies
	Fiber at irrigation district 



